MINUTES
of the

COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI
May 28, 2013
THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI, STATE OF
HAWAII, WAS HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, KALANA 0 MAUI BUILDING,
WAILUKU, HAWAII, ON TUESDAY, MAY 28, 2013, BEGINNING AT 10:04 A.M., WITH
VICE-CHAIR ROBERT CARROLL PRESIDING.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: This regular council meeting of May 28, 2013 is now in session.
Mr. Clerk.

ROLL CALL
PRESENT: COUNCILMEMBERS ELEANORA COCHRAN, DONALD G.
COUCH JR., S. STACY CRIVELLO, DONALD S. GUZMAN,
G. RIKI HOKAMA, MICHAEL P. VICTORINO, MICHAEL B.
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR ROBERT CARROLL.
EXCUSED: CHAIR GLADYS C. BAISA.
COUNTY CLERK JEFFREY T. KUWADA: Mr. Chairman, there are eight Members present
and one Member excused.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
Members, this morning we have Mr. White giving us our open remarks.
Mr. White.
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OPENING REMARKS
The opening remarks were offered by Councilmember Michael B. White.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. White.
Will you all please rise to Pledge Allegiance to the flag.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Members of the Council, and others in attendance, rose and recited the Pledge
of Allegiance.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Please be seated.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, proceeding with the presentation of testimony on
ceremonial resolutions. It is my understanding that we have a person in the Hana
District Office who wishes to offer testimony.
Hana District Office will you please identify the testifier.
MS. DAWN LONO: Good morning, this is Dawn Lono at the Hana Council Office. I have
Leihulu Oliveira here and she will offer some words following the presentation of the
ceremonial resolution.
COUNTY CLERK: Thank you.
Mr. Chairman, there is no other request for testimony on ceremonial resolutions.
Shall we proceed with ceremonial resolutions?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
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CEREMONIAL RESOLUTIONS
RESOLUTION
NO.
13-60
CONGRATULATING HANA HIGH & ELEMENTARY
SCHOOL SENIORS DIANA NAIHE, LEIHULU OLIVEIRA,
AND JORA MAY-ANN TOLENTINO-SMITH FOR BEING
NAMED CLASS OF 2013 GATES MILLENNIUM SCHOLARS
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
Mr. White. I mean, excuse me, Mr. Victorino. We have too many Mike's over here.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank. you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I MOVE THAT THE CEREMONIAL RESOLUTION BE
ACCEPTED.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
I SECOND, MR. CHAIR.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved and seconded by Mr. Couch.
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, may we have the resolution read in its
entirety?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Clerk.
(The resolution was read in its entirety.)

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Unfortunately, this morning, the
three young ladies that were from Hana, unfortunately, cannot make it in because of
the inclement weather. And as you well know, Mr. Chair, you, you come in everyday
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so you know exactly what's happening. And so, it is with regret that we have leis for
them but they are not here. I think Leihu, Leihula [sic] is waiting to, to speak to us.
And I would just like to say, Mr. Chair, on behalf of the people of Maui County, I'm
extremely pleased that these young ladies exemplify, again, what our outlying
districts, many times is not recognized for the great accomplishments academically. I
think we have fine young students in all aspects, in all areas of our County. But it
always seems the outlying districts don't seem to get enough recognition. And I think
it's time that we do realize that they perform at the higher standard like any other
school within this County.
And even if it is a distant learning, does not hamper them in any way of
accomplishing their goals. And these three young ladies, right now, have tall goals
and will be great contributors to this community. And I hope that once they're done
with their education, they'll come back to Maui County; maybe even in particular will
return to Hana and be productive citizens in Hana helping that community as well as
the entire County continues to strive.
So, I'll let you take it from here, Mr. Chair. Thank you for bringing this, this resolution
forward and let's hear from that young lady after it's completed.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Victorino.
I've known these three girls all of their lives, since they were born. And they're
outstanding, their entire lives were ones of excellence. Their entire lives were one
where they were always achieving. Their entire lives where they had big dreams
being in medicine, psychology, Hawaiian language, teaching.
And a lot of that would have been denied them because although they're excellent,
they have really good grades, they work hard, and everything else, we know how
much it costs for an education these days. But their hard work and diligence paid off
and they received this Bill Gates grant. And this will give them the opportunity to be
everything that they really want to be. And we're, I cannot say how proud I am, and
how proud all the people of Hana are. Thank you.
Any further comments before we call for the vote? Hearing none, all in favor of the
motion on the floor, signify by saying "aye".
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO,
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:
EXCUSED:

NONE.
CHAIR BAISA.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight "ayes"; one "excused", Ms. Baisa.
And we have Leihulu Oliveira at the Hana Office. And I don't know if any of the other
girls managed to make it.
Ms. Lono, could you ask her to speak now, say a few words.
MS. LEIHULU OLIVEIRA: Hi, this is Leihulu Oliveira speaking.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
MS. OLIVEIRA: Getting this scholarship was a really great opportunity for my family and I
and I couldn't be more excited and more grateful to be given this opportunity. And,
I'm looking forward to going to college in Seattle for the next however many years I'm
there.
It was a definite struggle trying to do the application and just the whole process. It
was, even waiting was really hard cause the few weeks before I found out the news,
it was driving me crazy. But my counselor, and my parents, and my friends, like,
have all been really supportive of me through the whole experience from start to
finish. They just knew that I would get it before I even pressed the submit button.
And the support was really, really great.
My counselor, Linda Gravatt, especially, helping me through the.application process
and helping me write my essays and thinking of stuff to tell the, the Gates people was
really challenging but she, she was really great through it all.
And, my parents are super excited for me and for them because they know they don't
have to worry anymore about sending me to college and trying to get me a higher
education. So, this has been a really great, great opportunity for me.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. And good luck to all of you.
Mr. Clerk.
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COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, for the record, RESOLUTION 13-60.
RESOLUTION
NO.
13-61
CONGRATULATING HAWAII ALL-STAR
CHEERLEADERS FOR CAPTURING NATIONAL
TITLES AT THE 2013 JAMFEST CHEER NATIONALS
AND THE 18 TH ANNUAL UNITED SPIRIT
ASSOCIATION ALL-STAR CHAMPIONSHIPS
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE THAT THE PROPOSED RESOLUTION,
"CONGRATULATING THE HAWAII ALL-STAR
CHEERLEADINGS FOR CAPTURING THE NATIONAL TITLES
AT THE 2013 JAMFEST CHEER NATIONALS AT THE
18 TH ANNUAL UNITED SPIRITS ASSOCIATION ALL-STARS
CHAMPIONSHIPS", BE ADOPTED.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
SECOND, MR. CHAIR.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino.
Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, may we have the Clerk read the resolution into, in its
entirety? Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Clerk.
(The resolution was read in its entirety.)

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
Mr. Guzman.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair.
We, as a County Council and, we may not be able to change the world, but I believe
that we can cast a rock across the water and create many ripples. Just like the
ripples of change, we, we must create and nourish these future leaders.
It is with great honor and pride that we honor the Hawaii All-Stars Cheerleading team
for capturing the national titles and bringing pride to our County. They've worked
hard as a team putting in long hours, practicing and preparing for competition. The
team members has done well in nourishing important values such as teamwork,
commitment, and commitment to excellence.
I congratulate the Hawaii All-Stars Cheerleading team for an outstanding
accomplishments. I ask my fellow Members to support this resolution. Thank you,
Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And, thank you, Mr. Guzman for
bringing this forward. You, myself like you, Mr. Chair, have watched a lot of these
young ladies grow up. And I remember when some of them first started cheerleading
back six, seven years ago when I first came into office. And some of them have
performed at my fundraisers, have performed at different events throughout this
County, and I've watched them all grow up. They're not adults yet but they're sure
getting there quick.
And I think it's just another example of how outstanding young ladies here in Maui
County exemplify what Maui is all about and being no ka oi. They go up there, they
compete against the best; beat the best, they become the best. And that's all I can
say about that.
But I also, in closing, that I want to thank their parents, their coaches, their
supporters; because, ladies without them, a lot of this does not come to fruition. All
those fundraisers, all those bake sales, all those carwashes don't just come
overnight; money is needed to travel. And we all understand that dynamics,
especially from the, from the smaller islands, outlying districts and how much more it
costs us to get anywhere.
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So I want to congratulate them, wish them continued success, and I think next year
they'll go up and exceed these scores, and not by win by three points, but by ten or
twelve. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion? Seeing one, all in favor of
the motion on the floor, signify by saying "aye".
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO,
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:
EXCUSED:

NONE.
CHAIR BAISA.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight "ayes", one "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
Oh excuse me, I'm sorry. Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. With your permission, I'd like to call up
the Hawaii All-Star Cheerleading team and their team moms to say a few word;
specifically the cheering, cheerleading captain, Kealani Castro.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Please proceed to the podium.
MS. KEALANI CASTRO: Good morning, everyone.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Good morning.
MS. CASTRO: My name is Kealani Castro and on behalf of Kealii Molina and the Hawaii
All-Star Cheerleaders, we would like to thank the County Council for appreciating and
respecting the fact that we worked so hard and all of our achievements.
Wow. Throughout the year in preparing for everything, we worked really hard and
we, all the effort that puts in, we're not only a team anymore, we're teammates, and
we're brothers and sisters, and we're a family. So whenever anyone walks out the
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door, you know that no matter what, those girls and those boys will have your back
forever.
I have been cheering for Hawaii All-Stars for three years. And throughout those three
years, I have cheered for seven teams of Kealii Molina's and I have assistant
coached for four different teams for him. On all of those teams, I have had a bond
with each girl and guy. And that bond will always be irreplaceable no matter what.
Hawaii All-Stars has taught me that, to work extremely hard is the key for everything.
It's always taught me that commitment, dedication, and being goal-driven is the key
to succeed; not only succeeding as a team, but succeeding as an individual.
So, once again, I'd like to thank the entire County Council for recognizing and
appreciating all the hard work and achievements that we've accomplished throughout
this past season. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: While the Councilmembers go over there to congratulate you, I
can't come down there, but my heartiest congratulations and we're very proud of
them.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, for the record, RESOLUTION 13-61.
Mr. Chairman, proceeding with the presentation of testimony on agenda items. We
have established limited telephone interactive communication that enables
individuals from Hana, Lanai, and Molokai, to provide testimony from our District
Offices. If individuals wish to testify from one of these locations, please sign up with
the District Office staff.
For individuals who will testify in the chamber, please sign up at the desk located in
the eighth floor lobby just outside the chamber door.
Testimony at all locations is limited to the items listed on today's agenda. Pursuant
to the Rules of the Council, each testifier is allowed to testify for up to three minutes
with one minute to conclude. When testifying, please state your name, the name of
any organization you represent.
Hana Office, please identify yourself and introduce your first testifier.
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MS. DAWN LONO: Aloha, this is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office, and there is no one in the
office waiting to testify.
COUNTY CLERK: Thank you.
Lanai Office, please identify yourself and introduce your first testifier.
MS. DENISE FERNANDEZ: Aloha, this is Denise Fernandez at the Lanai Office, and we
have no one waiting to testify.
COUNTY CLERK: Thank you.
Molokai Office, please identify yourself and introduce your first testifier. Molokai
Office.
MS. ELLA ALCON: Good morning, this is Ella Alcon on Molokai, and there is no one here
waiting to testify.
COUNTY CLERK: Thank you. Proceeding with testifiers in the chamber; calling Rosemary
Robbins. Ms. Robbins, will be followed by Bobbie Patnode.
Ms. Robbins will offer testimony on County Communication 13-165, as will
Ms. Patnode.

PRESENTATION OF WRITTEN OR ORAL TESTIMONY
MS. ROSEMARY ROBBINS (testifying on County Communication 13-175):
Thank you. Good morning again. I think I wrote 165 down there and I was circled in
here is 13-175, transmitting a proposed bill entitled, "BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING CHAPTER 14.07, MAUI COUNTY CODE, RELATING TO
EXEMPTIONS FROM WATER SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT FEES".
There are a number of people Upcountry who think that these needs need to be
thoroughly vetted in the Water Resources Committee before hitting the ground at this
stage. Are we accurate that this hasn't come before the Water Resources
Committee yet?
Councilman Victorino, this was yours? I just want to make sure that we're at the right
spot.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: No, testimony should be limited to you.
MS. ROBBINS: Okay, do we know that?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry.
MS. ROBBINS: There are a number of people Upcountry who see this item, 13.175 [sic] as
being needed to be vetted first of all in the Water Resources Committee rather than
having that one be presented first of all here.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: You know, this is not the time for you to ask me questions or the
Members questions. The time is just to, to offer testimony that you wish to give at
this time.
MS. ROBBINS: Oh, okay. Okay. So, consider it given, to have it be in the Water
Resources Committee forum before it would be introduced into this forum.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, you just give testimony at this time on the agenda items, any
agenda item you want and-MS. ROBBINS: Okay, is that not an agenda item?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Short recess.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE VICE-CHAIR AT 10:37 A.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 10:38 A.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT CHAIR BAISA,
EXCUSED.)
MS. ROBBINS: The testimony that I'm again saying is that there are folks Upcountry who
feel as though they need to have this hashed out in the Water Resources Committee
before having it go through here, just to have both. That's, that's the testimony.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed. Proceed with your testimony.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's it. I think she's done.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That was it. That was it.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. You've concluded.
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MS. ROBBINS: Four, four times, said it. I'll do it again if you want. But folks Upcountry are
concerned that this item, 13-175, would be considered for action here before it has
been considered for action in the Water Resources. It, it's a water issue.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: We are listening. Again, this is a time for public testimony and we
are here to hear your concerns and your testimony, but not to answer questions.
Members, you have any questions? No questions. Thank you very much.
MS. ROBBINS: Okay. Thank you, Don.
COUNTY CLERK: Calling Bobbie Patnode. Ms. Patnode, will be followed by William
Jacintho.
MS. BOBBIE PATNODE (testifying on County Communication 13-165):

Good morning, Council. My name is Bobbie Patnode. I'm here to ask about the
amendment proposed by Councilmember Victorino regarding the water meter fees
for people on the Upcountry water meter list.
I became aware of this amendment over the weekend. I read the proposed language
and I found it confusing. Why is it coming now? Why October 5?
My family has been on the list since 2005. We applied for an additional meter last
November when it seemed like we better be on the list or we might miss out entirely.
Do we pay different amounts for the two meters?
Fees are just one part of the picture. Connection costs need to be discussed as well.
My family is still concerned we might not be able to afford all the costs associated
with getting a meter. And I understand that Mr. Taylor has not included revenues
from increased fees in his budget.
I'm concerned that this amendment has not gotten sufficient consideration in the
Water Resources Committee and I don't think it should be part of passing our budget
at this late stage. Can we not discuss fees at a later time? I think there is plenty of
good intent with this amendment and I'd like to see it discussed and the best
language possible understood and agreed upon by the Council. Thank you.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: William Jacintho. Mr. Jacintho will offer testimony on County
Communication 13-175.
MR. WILLIAM JACINTHO, MAUI CATTLEMEN'S ASSOCIATION (testifying on County
Communication 13-175:
Good morning, Council. My name is William Jacintho. I'm here to testify on item
number 13-175 regarding to the water exemption development fees for Upcountry.
Many livestock producers and friends have read the Maui News about the proposed
amendment regarding the Upcountry water meter list. Some of them contacted me
with concerns about the proposal and what to do about it. I compiled their concerns
on this testimony for this regular Council meeting, and suggested that they attend the
meeting with their concerns as well.
The general feeling is that the proposal should not be done as part of budget
approval, but should be reviewed first by the Water Committee for detailed discussion
and review due to unanswered questions and concerns listed below.
I'm not going to go over the list. You guys have a really full schedule. So, anyway,
it's, it's listed below, many, there's almost two pages of it. Thank you for the
opportunity to testify.
The Maui Cattlemen's Association is a non-profit organization representing small and
large livestock producers in Maui County. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. JACINTHO: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: The last individual to have submitted a request to offer testimony is
Barbara Luke. She will be testifying on County Communication 13-175.
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MS. BARBARA LUKE (testifying on County Communication 13-175):

Good morning, Council Chair and Councilmembers. I wrote a letter on March 10,
and sent it to the Council, and Mr. Victorino, and the Mayor, and it was regarding this.
And I know some want to talk more about this. I don't know what more you could
say.
It's, as far as I know, this proposal, the 13-175, is to keep the meter fee at $6,030 for
those on the meter list. I think it's a, a simple request and it's really important for
someone like me. I've been on the list since November 2001, although I have been
trying to get on the list since 1989, when we first owned our property. So, to me, it's
really important and I realize too it's important because the fees raised as of July 1 of
this year, according to the budget. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
MS. LUKE: Oh, and, I'm sorry. Can my March 10, letter be made a part of this meeting? I,
I'm not sure if it would be, I could get, go out and get copies.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, if the, if the testifier's letter was sent to the Budget and
Finance Committee, it was, it is part of the Budget and Finance Committee
proceedings.
MS. LUKE: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
MS. LUKE: Thank you very much. And I thank you for all your time. I appreciate it.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: If there is anyone in the gallery or at the District Offices who would like
to offer testimony, please identify yourself to the appropriate staff; and in the chamber
proceed to the testimony lectern or in the District Office, the telephone in the District
Office at this time.
Hana Office, are there any additional testifiers?
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MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify.
COUNTY CLERK: Lanai Office, are there any additional testifiers?
MS. FERNANDEZ: The Lanai Office has no one waiting to testify.
COUNTY CLERK: Molokai Office, are there any additional testifiers?
MS. ALCON: There is no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, there are no individuals in either the District Offices nor in
the chamber who wish to offer testimony at this time.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Clerk, have we received any written testimony?
COUNTY CLERK: Yes, we have.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Is there any objection to entering the written testimony into the
record?
THERE BEING NO OBJECTION, WRITTEN TESTIMONY
RECEIVED FROM THE FOLLOWING INDIVIDUALS WERE
MADE A PART OF THE RECORD OF THIS MEETING:
1.
2.

William Jacintho, Maui Cattlemen's Association; and
Dave Taylor, Director of Water Supply.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Is there any objection to closing public testimony at this time?
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, proceeding with minutes.
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MINUTES
The minutes of the Council of the County of Maui's regular meeting of April 5, 2013; regular
meeting of April 19, 2013; and the public hearing of April 24, 2013; were presented at this
time.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
MR. CHAIR, I MOVE TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE
REGULAR MEETINGS OF APRIL 5, 2013; APRIL 19, 2013;
AND APRIL 24, 2013.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
MR. CHAIR, I SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Victorino, seconded by Mr. Couch.
Discussion, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no discussion, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: All in favor of the motion, please signify by saying "aye".
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO,
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:
EXCUSED:

NONE.
CHAIR BAISA.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight, zero, one "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
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COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, proceeding with committee reports.

COMMITTEE REPORTS
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
13-59 - BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE:
Recommending the following:
1.

That Bill 33 (2013), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A STATE WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND LOAN FOR THE WEST MAUI RECYCLED
WATER SYSTEM EXPANSION, PHASE 1B, WEST MAUI COMMUNITY
PLAN AREA, FISCAL YEAR 2014 BUDGET ORDINANCE", be PASSED ON
FIRST READING and be ORDERED TO PRINT;

2.

That Bill 34 (2013), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A STATE WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND LOAN FOR THE KIHEI WASTEWATER
PUMP STATION NO. 10 FORCE MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT, KIHEIMAKENA COMMUNITY PLAN AREA, FISCAL YEAR 2014 BUDGET
ORDINANCE", be PASSED ON FIRST READING and be ORDERED TO
PRINT;

3.

That Bill 35 (2013), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A LOAN FROM THE STATE
OF HAWAII'S DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING LOAN FUND
FOR THE OLINDA WATER TREATMENT FACILITY-ORGANIC CARBON
REDUCTION, MAKAWAO-PUKALANI-KULA COMMUNITY PLAN AREA,
FISCAL YEAR 2014 BUDGET ORDINANCE", be PASSED ON FIRST
READING and be ORDERED TO PRINT;

4.

That Bill 36 (2013), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A LOAN FROM THE STATE
OF HAWAII'S DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING LOAN FUND
FOR THE WAIKAMOI FLUME REPAIR/REPLACEMENT, MAKAWAO-
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PUKALANI-KULA COMMUNITY PLAN AREA, FISCAL YEAR 2014 BUDGET
ORDINANCE", be PASSED ON FIRST READING and be ORDERED TO
PRINT;
5.

That Bill 37 (2013), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A LOAN FROM THE STATE
OF HAWAII'S DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING LOAN FUND
FOR THE WAILUKU WELL #2 EXPLORATORY, WAILUKU-KAHULUI
COMMUNITY PLAN AREA, FISCAL YEAR 2014 BUDGET ORDINANCE", be
PASSED ON FIRST READING and be ORDERED TO PRINT;

6.

That Bill 38 (2013), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A LOAN FROM THE STATE
OF HAWAII'S DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING LOAN FUND
FOR THE PHASE 6 BOOSTER PUMP UPGRADES, MAKAWAO-PUKALANIKULA COMMUNITY PLAN AREA, FISCAL YEAR 2014 BUDGET
ORDINANCE", be PASSED ON FIRST READING and be ORDERED TO
PRINT;
That Bill 39 (2013), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A LOAN FROM THE STATE
OF HAWAII'S DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING LOAN FUND
FOR THE KULA 200 #1 TANK REPLACEMENT, MAKAWAO-PUKALANIKULA COMMUNITY PLAN AREA, FISCAL YEAR 2014 BUDGET
ORDINANCE", be PASSED ON FIRST READING and be ORDERED TO
PRINT;

8. That Bill 40 (2013), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING
THE ISSUANCE OF THIRTY MILLION EIGHT HUNDRED NINETY-ONE
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($30,891,000) AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT
OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI FOR THE
PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDS TO PAY ALL OR A PART OF THE
COST OF APPROPRIATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS OF AND FOR
THE COUNTY OF MAUI; FIXING THE FORM, DENOMINATIONS AND
CERTAIN OTHER FEATURES OF SUCH BONDS AND PROVIDING FOR
THEIR SALE; AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE TO
DETERMINE CERTAIN DETAILS OF THE BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE
ISSUANCE AND SALE OF A LIKE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF GENERAL
OBLIGATION BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES IN ANTICIPATION OF THE
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ISSUANCE AND SALE OF SUCH BONDS; AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER
ACTIONS RELATED TO THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY OF SAID
BONDS", be PASSED ON FIRST READING and be ORDERED TO PRINT;
9.

That Bill 41 (2013), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE DETERMINING
THAT PART OF THE PROCEEDS OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF
THE COUNTY OF MAUI HERETOFORE ISSUED IS IN EXCESS OF THE
AMOUNTS REQUIRED FOR THE PURPOSES FOR WHICH SUCH BONDS
WERE INITIALLY ISSUED, OR MAY OR SHOULD NOT BE APPLIED TO
THOSE PURPOSES, AND DIRECTING SUCH PROCEEDS TO OTHER
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS OR AUTHORIZED PURPOSES OF THE
COUNTY OF MAUI", be PASSED ON FIRST READING and be ORDERED
TO PRINT;

10.

That Bill 42 (2013), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO
THE CAPITAL PROGRAM FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING
JUNE 30, 2014", be PASSED ON FIRST READING and be ORDERED TO
PRINT;

11.

That Bill 43 (2013), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO
THE OPERATING BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI FOR THE FISCAL
YEAR JULY 1, 2013 TO JUNE 30, 2014", be PASSED ON FIRST READING
and be ORDERED TO PRINT;

12.

That the matter relating to random drug testing for County employees be
REFERRED to your Policy and Intergovernmental Affairs Committee;

13.

That the matter relating to cost recovery of the helicopter service provided by
the Department of Fire and Public Safety be REFERRED to your Policy and
Intergovernmental Affairs Committee;

14.

That the matter relating to cost recovery of licenses and permits issued by
County departments be REFERRED to your Policy and Intergovernmental
Affairs Committee;

15.

That the matter relating to the transfer of the functions of shoreline and ocean
rescue and safety from the Department of Parks and Recreation to the
Department of Fire and Public Safety be REFERRED to your Policy and
Intergovernmental Affairs Committee;

16.

That the matter relating to a review of real property tax classifications be
REFERRED to your Budget and Finance Committee;

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
May 28, 2013
Page 20

17.

That the matter relating to rental assistance for renters of real property
classified as Residential be REFERRED to your Housing, Human Services,
and Transportation Committee;

18.

That the matter relating to the Animal Management Program be REFERRED
to your Housing, Human Services, and Transportation Committee;

19.

That the matter relating to homelessness in Maui County be REFERRED to
your Housing, Human Services, and Transportation Committee;

20.

That the matter relating to multi-family water service rates be REFERRED to
your Water Resources Committee;

21.

That the matter relating to watershed management within Maui County be
REFERRED to your Water Resources Committee;

22.

That the matter relating to the need for additional inspectors for the Plan
Review, Permit Processing, and Inspection Program in the Department of
Public Works be REFERRED to your Infrastructure and Environmental
Management Committee;

23.

That the matter relating to the Pavement Preservation Program in the
Department of Public Works be REFERRED to your Infrastructure and
Environmental Management Committee;

24.

That the matter relating to Commercial Ocean Recreational Activity fees, fines,
and penalties be REFERRED to your Economic Development, Energy,
Agriculture, and Recreation Committee;

25.

That the matter relating to the schedule of fees and deposits charged for the
use of park facilities be REFERRED to your Economic Development, Energy,
Agriculture, and Recreation Committee;

26.

That County Communication 13-100, from Council Chair Gladys C. Baisa, be
FILED; and

27.

That County Communication 13-124, from Mayor Alan M. Arakawa, be FILED.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I MOVE TO ADOPT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN
COMMITTEE REPORT 13-59.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I'd like to thank the Members and staff of the Budget and Finance Committee for all
the work that has taken place in preparing this 2014 Budget. We had important
discussions on many topics and the conversations will continue on several of the
major topics, which have just been outlined as being referred to the various Council
Committees. We worked hard to balance the Budget. We made some tough
decisions and so I'd like to thank all the Members once again.
With that, I would like to make a floor amendment as outlined in the amendment
summary form dated May 28, which was just passed out this morning, which relates
to the Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2014.
The amendment makes technical corrections and other revisions to the proposed bill
to maintain consistency with the Committee's intent.
THEREFORE, I MOVE TO AMEND THE PROPOSED BILL
ENTITLED "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO THE
OPERATING BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI FOR
THE FISCAL YEAR 2013 TO JUNE 30, 2014" AS INDICATED
ON THE ATTACHED MARKED-UP COPY OF THE BILL,
ATTACHED TO THE AMENDMENT SUMMARY FORM.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, to amend the motion on the floor, and
seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The bill amends the proposed bill by
increasing estimated revenue for Interfund Transfers by $236,208 to accurately
reflect what constitutes the Interfund balance.
And, number two, increasing the appropriations for Countywide Fringe Benefits by
two thousand six hundred, three hundred and seventy-two, two hundred and, I'm
sorry, $206,372 to reflect the revenue increase in Interfund Transfers in the Aquatics
Program by 29,836 to include funds for a position inadvertently omitted in the transfer
of the Ocean Safety Program from the Fire, Department of Fire and Public Safety
back to the Department of Parks and Recreation.
Number three, inserting the word "Hana" in the proviso for Festivals of Aloha grant,
which was inadvertently omitted.
Number four, decreasing the estimated grant revenue for Federal Highway
Administration/Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act Highway and other
Transportation Grants by $2,000,000 to reflect the utilization of funds in Fiscal
Year 2013 for the Lono Avenue Intersection improvements at Papa Avenue.
And, number five, adjusting subtotals and totals for consistency with the
aforementioned amendments. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion? Seeing none, all in favor of the motion to
amend Committee Report 13-59, signify by saying "aye".
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO,
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:
EXCUSED:

NONE.
CHAIR BAISA.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight "ayes", one "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, excuse me, back to the main motion. We just moved to
amend the main motion. Any further discussion to the main motion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just a few words prior to the Council making a decision on
first reading this morning, Chairman.
I want to thank Chairman White. I thought he had a very difficult task with eight other
egos sitting with him in a budget and finance process called the annual budget
deliberations.
For me, Chairman, you know, I still have my reservations about this budget. I know
there's a lot of need out there but there's also a capacity of what we can afford. And,
while I haven't always been as optimistic as UH economists and bank economists
about our economy because I don't see it in the private sector's revenue growth as a
key factor in my considerations of what I called a healthy economy. It is still my
concern that growing this budget, growing positions, growing what will be going into
required funding of obligations; whether it be retirement or health funds, it's still a
major concern for me.
I am not comfortable, Chairman, at this time knowing what has been shared with me
from the national level regarding the impacts of the Federal Reserve. What they,
what is going to happen to our economy if inflation, once the Federal Reserve stops
buying eighty-five billion dollars of our bonds every month, how the market will
respond.
You just notice last week, just by a indication that the Fed may pull back or reduce or
eliminate its purchasing, made Wall Street quite nervous. And there is still continued
discussions that the market will react with a 10 percent fallback, which is if you watch
the trends historically, it occurs.
I'm also concerned, Chairman, that until we get a very good policy from Council on
what is considered fee for services requirement programs and operations versus
traditional grant outlays. I think this County is not going to be at the level of efficiency
that the taxpayers want.
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So, I still have my concerns, Chairman, you know, and as I've said, I have viewed
this Budget from where we were last year and how much we've grown it and not how
much we've reduced the projected request of the Mayor because growth is still
growth. I don't care how we want to frame it, and cost is still cost.
Add that with the legislation that the State Legislature has passed, especially
regarding obligatory funding and putting us on what the State believe is the best
interest of the County, which is quite interesting how we should pay our bills. I had
hoped that they would have learned from our County, specifically, Chairman, on how
they should pay their bills.
You know, I, I've shared my, some of the thoughts that during the budget process
that the Chairman has allowed me to share. But I just bring this up because I believe
we're not out of the woods yet, Chairman. Yes, it's great to see our visitors back. It
is great to see increased spending. But, I really don't see it in the profit margins and
the revenue growth of our private sector companies yet. And for me it is a major
concern.
And so Chairman, with respect, I will still support the decision made by the
Committee, but I believe my reservations has standing. It is backed up with I think
information, that for me, makes me less confident in that optimistic picture that
interesting enough those in the banking and higher education levels, you know.
I don't know what to say, Chairman. You know, we were taught that intelligence is
great, but it's hard to beat common sense. So, I thank you for this opportunity to
speak this morning. Thank you, Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And, thank you, Mr. Hokama for
those wise words. I think most of us look upon you as a financial, I don't want to use
the word guru, but I guess it's the best word I could think of at the moment, you know,
so that's what I got to use. And so, thank you.
And, so, Mr., Mr. Chair, I, I'd like to make an amendment also to, and move up
County Communication 13-65 [sic] with your permission.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any objections?
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MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Clerk, could you please read that communication?
NO.

13-165

- MICHAEL P. VICTORINO, COUNCILMEMBER,
(dated May 17, 2013)

Proposing amendments to the proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
RELATING TO THE OPERATING BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI FOR
THE FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2013 TO JUNE 30, 2014", attached to Budget and
Finance Committee Report No. 13-59.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I MOVE TO AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR BUDGET 2014,
APPENDIX B, WATER SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT FEES, BY
INSERTING THE FOLLOWING: "WATER SYSTEM
DEVELOPMENT FEES AS OF OCTOBER 5, 2012 WILL
APPLY TO, TO REQUESTS OF APPLICANTS ADDED TO
THE PRIORITY LIST FOR THE UPCOUNTRY METER, UP,
UPCOUNTRY FROM NOVEMBER 1, 2001 THROUGH
OCTOBER 5, 2012 WITH A MAXIMUM OF, UP TO A
MAXIMUM OF THREE LOTS."
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Is there a second to the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Who was that?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I second that motion.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama has seconded.
Mr. Victorino, discussion.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
And I know and you've heard the discussion by some of the testifiers and, and some
of you have received letters and emails in the confusion that is out there. And let me
start by saying, on December 7, 2012, the Council passed an ordinance relating to
water meter issuance provisions for the Upcountry water meter system. The
ordinance enabled the Department of Water Supply to expedite process water
system application and eliminate the Upcountry Water Meter Priority List.
The Department has already begun the process of issuing water meter, water meters
for applicants on this list. However, I think most of the applicants on the list should
be protected from increases in the water system development fees. The applicants
that were listed prior to 2001 have been protected from these fee increases. If you
read the ordinance that exists today, that they were protected and their fees kept at
three thousand something dollars; I, I, I don't have it right in front of me. But I can, I
can look it up.
I think in, I think this is only fair that others should be protected as well. Now, let me
explain real quickly so that the, the Members know what I'm trying to do here. I have
been told that if I do not do this amendment here and that we pass the new water
rate development fees, that it would now take the Mayor sending back down a
proposed change before anything else could be done.
Secondly, a lot of people Upcountry are confused, as you saw this morning. And
there's a whole list of questions which Mr. Jacintho and others brought up today.
And I think this is something that has not been discussed in the water use and
development, the Water Resources Committee. I think this is very important. We
need to get transparency and so the public understands exactly what this means.
Thirdly, when we made changes in 2001, we saw a fit to protect those prior to that
change with the old rate of 3,000. And in fact, I'll go pull it up right now. And back
then, up to October 31, 2001, anyone that had development fees and rates as of
October, April 1993 will apply to the request applicants on the priority list for the
Upcountry, in pursuant to Section 14.13.090, Maui County Code, and was up to
October 31, 2001.
So, what I am doing now is saying the same thing but now up to, what is this
November, wait, I know, a second. I get so many things in front of me, just like you
Mr. White, too many stuff. Protecting those that were on the list up to October 5,
2012, when notice was given. And Ms. Patnode brought that up, when many people
then said, Mr. Taylor from the Department of Water Supply said, we will now be
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closing it up as of January 1, they will take no more new names on the Upcountry
Water Meter List. So people then went out and got their names put on before it was
shut down.
So, I'm protecting those who up to October 5, 2012 who had been on this list, some
for 10, 11, 12 years waiting for their water meter. Ms. Patnode brought that up also;
that they would be, lack of a better term, grandfathered in with the $6,030, not paying
the new fee of $12,060.
I also put in, as the original amendment had up to three lots. So no one can took big
advantage. No developer or anybody could say put a hundred lots and, and save,
you know, in that respect. So, this is to protect those families who have family lots,
who have been waiting all these years, to protect them and give them an opportunity.
Further discussion will be brought forth in the Committee. So long as it doesn't
change, I can then discuss the matter and look if we can show validity in next year's
budget, we can then change it at, at that point in time.
Also, this does not affect the budget; the Operating Budget for the, the Fiscal
Year 13-14. So, this is just a means of trying to give the Upcountry people an
opportunity to come forward to testify, to discuss, and find some reasonable ways of
protecting their being able to get water meters for the Upcountry area.
So, this is what this was all about and it was very simple. And it was not something
that's complex and all that, Mr. Chair. It's either you support, you know, in helping
these people that have been waiting for many, many years or you decide to just raise
the fee and let, let the fee be raised to the 12,060. Very simple, Mr. Chair.
So, I would hope my colleagues can see what I am trying to do here is really to give
time for us to have further discussion on something that's very impactful to the people
who have been waiting all these years on the Upcountry water meter list. Thank you,
Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion?
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I notice Mr. Baz is present this morning. I would
ask the Members and yourself, if there's no objections, may we request Mr. Baz, I
would like to ask a-VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any objections?
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MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Please come forward.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Baz, if you would please.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Try wait till he's seated.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. Mine is more just for some information or
clarification, Director Baz. So, maybe you can help us with this matter that's before
us at this time.
Mr., you, you've heard Mr. Victorino's proposal, amendment, consideration. Can you
tell the Council this morning whether or not you calculated any of the Department of
Water's funding based on the rates that are in the current version of the proposal?
And if so, then this reduction would have a decrease in your revenue numbers. And
unless we change the expenditure side, we're going to have an unbalanced budget.
So, maybe if you can help us with some comment please, Mr. Baz.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Baz.
BUDGET DIRECTOR SANANDA BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Member Hokama. My
name is Sandy Baz, the Budget Director. I, from my understanding the, this relates
specifically to the water development services fees. Those are calculated based on
receiving money and for future expenditures. There is no funding that is allocated for
expenditure out of that fund that would be affected by this amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, should this go forward, there is no impact on the current
budget bills?
BUDGET DIRECTOR: The, excuse me, for Fiscal Year 14, there is no impact. Future fiscal
years there is an impact.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much. Thank you, Chairman. I
don't know if the other Members may have a question for Mr. Baz on this
amendment.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
You, you say there's future impact? Is there, has there been a calculation of that
future impact?
BUDGET DIRECTOR: I have not performed any calculation on the future impact.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do you know if the Department has?
BUDGET DIRECTOR: They have.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, Director Taylor is here. Is it possible we have him
up here? And, and if we get closer to Committee work, I'd rather see this in
Committee. But I know there's some urgency on this. So, I'd like to, if, without
objection, ask Mr. Taylor to come up.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: First of all I would ask, since Mr. Baz is here, is there any other
further, further questions for him?
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Mr. Chair, I would, I'd like to have both gentlemen up here at
the same time if that's okay with you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Could Mr. Taylor please come down.
Proceed, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh I believe Mr., Mr. Couch had the floor.
,

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Taylor, do you have an anticipated, a loss in revenue if
this bill were, this amendment were to pass as suggested by Mr. Victorino?
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DIRECTOR OF WATER SUPPLY DAVID TAYLOR: Thank you, Member Couch.
Mr. Chair, if it's appropriate, I have a handout that might help answer this if you'd
allow me to pass that out.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Could, staff will come over there and hand it out.
DIRECTOR OF WATER SUPPLY: Mr. Couch and Members, my name is Dave Taylor. I'm
the Director of the Department of Water Supply.
In the last Water Resources Committee meeting before we stopped for Budget, which
I think was February 27, I believe, somewhere around there, we gave a presentation
about a number of options for future funding based on all having the same
assumptions of a fixed amount of capital improvement. On the, the handout I just
presented; this is the same handout that we gave during that meeting.
Our budget was based on the last, the very bottom row, it's labeled "Balanced
Approach Includes Interest and Annual Fee Increases". So, what we calculated is
that if we, so what this shows is that if the meter fees were raised to $12,060, with a
$2,000 a year annual increase, annual rate increases were anticipated to be about
six percent. We had noted during that Committee meeting that our budget would be
based upon the, that as a long-term philosophy and that the FY 14, Department of
Water Supply budget, was based on that projection.
If you look in the third, I'm sorry, the fourth column down, or the fourth row down, it
says, "Current Meter Fee, with Interest, Increased Rates". It has the meter fee being
$6,030, it says "current fee" and the rates that go along with that is a fourteen percent
annual increase every single year. So that would be a different way to fund the
necessary improvement projects. That's not what our, what our budget was based
on.
So, essentially what the proposal by Mr. Victorino is, is to take a portion of those
meters, the Upcountry portion between those dates, and lock those in at $6,030. So
obviously, the increasing rates over future years would be somewhere between the
six percent we're projecting now and the fourteen percent which is part of that, that
scenario. So, that would be our projection, it would be somewhere between the
six percent and that fourteen percent. So, instead of getting, instead of anticipating
six percent increases every year, it would be somewhere between six and
fourteen percent; probably somewhere about halfway between.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Follow-up, Mr. Chair.
Mr. Taylor, you, you mentioned that your current, your current budget, the 2014,
Fiscal Year 14 Budget anticipates income from this, the in, increase to 12,060. Is
that correct?
DIRECTOR OF WATER SUPPLY: As Budget Director Baz said a little earlier, there is no
FY 14 impacts of the proposed amendment because when we borrow money, either
through General Obligation Bonds or SRF Loans, we're borrowing the money this
year. It's in this fiscal year's budget but we don't pay any of it back in this fiscal year,
we pay it back next year, the year after, and you know, 20 years hence.
So, we didn't just look at this year. It's just like putting things on your credit card;
there is no expense right now. We looked at these longer-term projections over the
next 10, 20 years about how are we going to pay off the increasing debt service. So,
what the proposal in front of you would do is decrease future revenue from those
water source development fees and we would have to raise rates to bring in the
same amount of revenue. So, even though there are no FY 14 impacts, there will
clearly either be FY 15 or 16, or many years beyond impacts where we'd have to
raise rates more than anticipated to make up for the revenue shortfall from the meter
fees.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. That opens a whole lot more questions. So, thank
you, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion?
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
You know, I, I really appreciate what, what Mr. Victorino is, is trying to accomplish
here. At the same time, I, I feel that he's done a really good job of discussing these
items in Committee. And, as we've stated during the budget process, I would like to
encourage a lot more of the Committee's to take up budget items during the year as
Mr. Victorino has done.
My feeling is that I would rather deal with this in his Committee, or if it needs to be
referred to my Committee I would be willing to deal with it. I think the effort is wellintentioned but at this point, I believe it's, it's something that sounds like it's not an
immediate necessity and I'd like to take this up in the, in one of the committees or the
other.
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And I'm sure that if we're able to reach a, a viable solution, that the Administration
would be happy to come back with a budget amendment to recommend the, the
appropriate change. So, I, I'm not able to support the amendment as its been
presented.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This question actually is to Corporation Counsel. And I
just want this on the record so that everybody's clear because, again, it can be
referred back to my Committee as for work or your Committee, Mr. White; it doesn't
make a difference.
However, Mr. Wong, I have been informed that if it passes out in its present form,
that only the Mayor could then send down a budget amendment or some sort of
change to revert back to where it is or to change it in any other manner. Because
now, we no longer, I cannot, as a Councilmember, introduce any change for the fee
itself. Now, this is what I was informed. Correct me if I'm wrong because the public
needs to know that because I cannot, and if I'm clear, I'm going to be tied. Okay, I
need that answer so that we can, you know, when the Councilmembers make their
decision, I want them perfectly clear why I did this at this time.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Corporation Counsel.
CORPORATION COUNSEL PATRICK WONG: Chair, can we take a few minutes, off the
record.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry
CORPORATION COUNSEL: A recess. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Recess.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Short recess.
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(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 11:21 A.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 11:26 A.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT CHAIR BAISA,
EXCUSED.)
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: This regular Council meeting of May 28 is now back in session.
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I, I'll await Mr. Wong's answer as
far as the rates and fees.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Wong, your opinion.
CORPORATION COUNSEL: Thank you, Chair, Mr. Victorino. That's a very good question,
very difficult one. Based on the way you frame the question and the method within
which its written up, dealing directly with rates and fees, with the understanding the
rates and fees are part of the, and implicit within the Mayor's Operating Budget,
within the Charter, Section 9-10 Subparagraph 3, it reads, "The Mayor or the council
may initiate changes to their respective operating budgets". With that implacable
Charter provision, it can be inferred that the rates and fees as it relates to the
Operating Budget of the Mayor would have to be initiated by the Mayor.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you for that clarification, Mr. Chair. I just want all
the Members to understand that it would fall back on the Mayor and not under us
anymore. And we have no longer any control in bringing that subject matter up.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Members. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And, I guess this is a question to
Mr. Wong or Mr. Taylor. Is there a, there currently is an ordinance on the books
that's restricts the price at $3,000 for list holders way back when. Is that correct?
There's an ordinance that is separate from the Budget.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Director Baz.
CORPORATION COUNSEL: Member Couch, I believe you're referring to the footnote on
the bottom of the ordinance. Is that correct?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, the Upcountry, it's commonly referred to as the
Upcountry meter list. But, in that ordinance it says that the price will be $3,000 for
people up to a certain date. So, there's a separate ordinance outside of the budget
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that, that restricts the price of the meters. So, if, if Council decided to, to either
amend that, you know, make a change to that ordinance or add another line to the, to
the ordinance or whatnot, we could do it at that point. Is that correct?
CORPORATION COUNSEL: Councilmember, I believe you are referring to the Water Code
14.13. Is that correct?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I don't know exactly the number but I do know that there is a
restriction.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It is Section 14.13.090, Maui County Code. I can tell you
exactly cause it's right here.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I guess the question would be, could we revise that if we
needed to have a discussion and then charge, set that rate at that time?
CORPORATION COUNSEL: If you, the easier way to look at it, the answer, the direct
answer to your question is yes. But the easier way to look at it, if you look at Member
Victorino's communication, I think what you're referring to is, correct me if I'm wrong,
the base of that it says, water systems, and it tracks the same language that Member
Victorino is proposing. But it has a separate period between April 1993 through
October 31, 2001. Am I accurate in the reference that I've-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, I mean, that's what he's proposing. But I'm suggesting
that if we wanted to discuss this further, I understand that we're not allowed to make
changes, requests for amendments as a Council to the Mayor's Budget. But we
could amend 14. Whatever.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: 13.090.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. We could amend that at a later time. It doesn't have
to be, I mean it can be Council initiated is that correct?
CORPORATION COUNSEL: Yes, that is correct.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Couch.
CORPORATION COUNSEL: Fourteen, 14.13 can be amended by the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion before I call for the question?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Now, no. Hang on, Mr. Chair.
You know what, and I, I know Mr. Couch is trying to lead us down another path and
that's absolutely incorrect, Mr. I'm going to challenge this right now and I cannot do
this without a clear conscience because I have not been corrected in saying that the
fees, once set, can only be changed during that fiscal year by the Mayor.
These amendments would have to be put in while we're doing that and that would
have to be specific saying what that fee would be. Is that correct, Mr. Wong?
Cause 14., 14.13.090 says exactly how much it is and it was done originally when the
rates went up to $6,000. So, I just want this on the record because I'm not going to
just let it slide and, you know, fine.
You know, Councilmembers will vote their conscience; I'm not worried about that.
But I want to make sure the public knows that once you say something, that if I go,
come back and do something you guys say I can't, I, I made sure the points were all
clear.
And I hate doing Committee work at the Council level; I agree with you, Mr. Chair.
This is not where I want to do it but I just want these points to be perfectly clear so
the public understands.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Wong.
CORPORATION COUNSEL: Okay, I'm not quite clear on what the question is. However,
let me, let me just read for you 14.13.090 directly from the County Code. It says,
"Water systems development fee rates as of April 1993 will apply to requests of
applicants on the priority list as of October 31, 2001 up to a maximum of three lots".
That's what it says in the County Code.
What you're proposing is language that's similarly tracks that same language except
that it defines a different period of time. The County Code can be amended by this
body as it moves forward; however, this provision in 14.13.090 does not, according to
this in front of me, provide a defined amount; except that it limits the values for the
period between April 1993 to October 31, 2001 up to a maximum three lots. Which
is-VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Are you done?
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CORPORATION COUNSEL: Not, not quite.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, he's not done yet.
CORPORATION COUNSEL: And, and, what, if you look at what you have in the original
language of the document of the budget ordinance, it does track the same language
of 14.13.090, but it also is tied directly into the fee amounts.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CORPORATION COUNSEL: So, by that nature, it sets the rate within the rates and fees.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But didn't the original one do that same thing? Cause I
used the exact same language.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Different place.
CORPORATION COUNSEL: Well, you're proposing to insert this language just below the
previous language in the budget ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That is correct; exactly what I'm doing, is putting that
below this so that it will still show 12 but anyone prior to this point would be
grandfathered, excuse me, would be in essence getting the $6,000 rate. Am I correct
in saying that Mr. Wong, if I insert this language? That's all I'm doing, I'm not putting
any rates there, I'm just putting the insertion of the language.
CORPORATION COUNSEL: I, I believe you're correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's all I meant. I'm telling my, my colleagues. I'm
inserting language, I'm not saying what the rates are going to be, I'm inserting the
language to protect those who are on the list up through October 5, 2012.
CORPORATION COUNSEL: That would be fine; it's your preference. Is there any other
question that you would want me to?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, that's all, that's all, that's the only questions I have.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
Mr. Couch.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And thank you for all the discussion. It seems, I
seem to recall that during the Water Committee meetings, we all kind of agreed on
the balanced approach that Mr. Taylor put in his, the bottom line here.
So, Mr. Taylor, if, I, I don't have a number yet, what is the anticipated amount that,
that we would have to make up if we put those rates down to six million? If I did the
math and the paper, it's close to $7,000,000, the number in the paper, is that right?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Taylor.
DIRECTOR OF WATER SUPPLY: Member Couch, actually, assuming that there were
roughly 3,000 meters which is the number of water meters we've estimated, it's
important to remember that an application isn't necessarily for one water meter; an
application can be for many water meters, so, these are estimates.
But assuming that between November 1, 2001 and, and 10/5/12, there was about
2,960 water meters; that's our rough count. That comes out at $6,030 each to about
$18 million. So at $6,030 we'd bring in about 18 million, at around $12,000, around
36 million. So, the difference is about $18 million that we would have to make up
through rate increases.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank, thank you, Mr. Taylor.
And, Mr. Chair, that, that kind of goes to what we talked about. Mr. Taylor said over
and over again in the Water Committee meetings is you have to have the political will
to go with this, this approach. And we all kind of agreed to go to that approach. So,
I'm going to stick to what we agreed to in the, in the Committee meetings. Thank
you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: All right, Members, we've discussed this at length. And I think
everybody should have a pretty clear idea of the impacts either way. If there's no
objection, I'm going to call for the question.
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: All those in favor of the motion to amend Committee
Report 13-59, please signify by saying "aye".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Roll call. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Stacy Crivello.

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:

YES.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Elle Cochran.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Don Couch.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Riki Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Mike White.

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Don Guzman.

COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN:

YES, WITH RESERVATIONS.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Michael P. Victorino.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Chair Gladys Coelho Baisa.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL:

EXCUSED.
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COUNTY CLERK:

Vice-Chair Robert Carroll.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL:

NO.

AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, AND
VICTORINO.

NOES:

COUCH,
COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
HOKAMA, WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.

EXCUSED:

CHAIR BAISA.

COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, the votes are three "ayes", five "noes", and one
"excused". The motion fails.
(See pages 58 and 59 for filing of County Communication
No. 13-165.)
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: We're back to the main motion as amended. Any further
discussion? Hearing-Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And, I wanted to kind of speak on
some, some of the things that Mr. Hokama said and I, and I agree with his, a lot of his
comments.
One of the, one of the things that we did get in, in the last several years is a lot of
requests for our infrastructure to be improved; especially our roads, water, as we just
heard right now in this little discussion, and our parks. And that's what this budget
did, is it increased those areas and a few more. Unfortunately, our costs also
increase for materials and wages and everything is increasing. So, I feel that this is
a, a, a balanced approach. I, you know, I'm, I'm a little bit, you know, I've, I did my
vote on the rates but I understand what the Committee did. I prefer to see a little bit
more spread out on the, on the users of this.
But if we don't, if we don't maintain and repair our infrastructure, we'll see things like
what, what happened in the State of Washington, a major corridor now because of a
bridge got bumped. We'll see what we see in Oahu all the time a water, major water
main break every day, a sewage spill, more often than we have now. So, we have to
maintain our infrastructure and now's the time to do it when rates are low and every,
you know, the costs are lower than they would be when things start booming again.
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So, I, I support this budget and I support the work that the, the Committee did and I
don't have any reservations other than the, the way we are doing the, the tax rates.
Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion before I call for the question?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you and, and I will say that I think all of us had the
opportunity in many respects to look over this entire budget. And I think when it is all
said and done, we did, and with the Chairman's leadership, we did what was right for
the people.
We tried to not raise where we could, keep tax rates and real property much lower
than was proposed, almost across the board, in fact across the board. And we made
user fees start moving up, but we didn't have the political where all to do some of the
things like in Planning, you know, being able to raise, let them, allow them to raise
the fees for the users instead of taking more money from general . . . Yet on the
other side, you're not afraid to raise fees for the Upcountry people and their meters.
You know, it's kind of like a dual edge sword, kind of Ying and Yang in this whole
issue. But that's everybody's making their decisions based upon what they feel, and I
can handle that. I have no problem with that.
To the people of Maui County, I believe that this, again, in the futuristic aspect, you're
going to look back and say this was a fair and clean budget.
Like every other Chair, Mr. White, I thank you very much cause it's a daunting task,
you know. And then again, you played some, you played things on, I had not seen
before so I had to learn your system, and that's okay. It's all good. It was all good.
And I respect my colleagues' opinions. You'll live with the consequences because,
you know, I can only do what I feel. And remember, it always takes five votes for
anything to really happen here. And if it's super majority, six, obviously. So, I can
feel very comfortable. I have no reservations, not on rates, not on what we've done.
I regret that I wasn't able to, to help the Upcountry people, but it is what it is. It is life.
I think it's fair all around and there's more work to be done.
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All I say to the departments including the Department of Water Supply, you better be
on your toes because we're going to be watching now. We're giving you the, the
monies, we're giving you the opportunity, let's see the job done. Don't come back
and give us more excuses. We want to see the job done.
Like Mr. Hokama said, you have to get efficient and get your, your house cleaned up
so that once you're cleaned up, the County and the people of this County can feel
much, much more comfortable in what's happening.
I wish everyone well. I, I am unfortunately not going to be here for second reading.
So, my vote today is approving and will be my only chance to vote on the budget. I
will not be here for second reading unfortunately, I have a conference to attend so I
will not be here.
But I want to thank all my Members for their patience. And for me, personally, I think
the people of Maui County are very fortunate to have a bunch of people along with
the Administration who works hard, diligently for their well-being.
I had one lady, by the way, in closing, I had one lady email me saying that how come
we raised the rates for her rental. And I emailed her back and says unfortunately
residential rentals were not raised, you know. She said her landlord raised her rate
telling her that. I don't know who's telling whom what, but check with your landlord
because we didn't change the rates. Maybe assessments, maybe other reasons; but
we didn't raise the rates on rental, residential rentals. We did not touch that one. So,
unfortunately there's a lot of misinformation out there, Mr. Chair. What can we do
about it except try our best. Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: If there's no further discussion, I will call for the question.
COUNTY CLERK: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: The motion on the floor, excuse me.
One short recess.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE VICE-CHAIR AT 11:44 A.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 11:45 A.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT CHAIR BAISA,
EXCUSED.)
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: This Council meeting is now back in session.
Members, the motion on the floor is Committee Report 13-59, as amended. All those
in favor, please signify by saying "aye".
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO,
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:
EXCUSED:

NONE.
CHAIR BAISA.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight "ayes"; one "excused", Ms. Baisa.
Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, for the record, BILLS 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, 41,
42, AND 43 (2013), respectively.
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
13-60 - LAND USE COMMITTEE:
Recommending the following:
1.

That Bill 44 (2013), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND
THE STATE LAND USE DISTRICT CLASSIFICATION FROM
AGRICULTURAL TO URBAN (CONDITIONAL BOUNDARY AMENDMENT)
FOR TAX MAP KEY NUMBER (2) 4-9-002:001 (POR.), LANAI, MAUI,
HAWAII", be PASSED ON FIRST READING and be ORDERED TO PRINT;

2.

That Bill 45 (2013), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO CHANGE
ZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO M-2 HEAVY INDUSTRIAL
DISTRICT (CONDITIONAL ZONING) FOR TAX MAP KEY
NUMBER (2) 4-9-002:001 (POR.), LANAI, MAUI, HAWAII", be PASSED ON
FIRST READING and be ORDERED TO PRINT;
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3.

That the County Clerk RECORD the unilateral agreements; and

4.

That County Communication 09-293, from the Planning Director, be FILED.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO ADOPT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN LAND USE
COMMITTEE REPORT 13-60.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
MR. CHAIR, I SECOND THE MOTION.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino.
Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. The proposed bills would grant a
request from Lanai Resorts, LLC, for a District Boundary Amendment from
Agricultural District to Urban District, and a Change in Zoning from Agricultural
District to M-2 Heavy Industrial District, to add approximately 6.019 acres of industrial
area to the existing, adjacent 14-acres Miki Basin heavy industrial area in Lanai.
Your Committee noted that the land use changes are important to the community. By
increasing the availability, the availability of industrial land at the Miki Road location,
other opportunities would be created within the urban core of Lanai City.
As revised, the proposed District Boundary Amendments bill and the proposed
Change in Zoning bill each incorporate a different set of conditions specific to that
land use entitlement. Two conditions apply to the District Boundary Amendment and
16 conditions apply to the Change in Zoning.
Your Committee voted 8-0 to recommend passage of the revised proposed bill on
first reading and filing of the communication. I ask for my fellow Members in support,
for their full support. Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chair.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. I'd like to extend my appreciation to
you as our Land Use Chairman, Mr. Carroll, and Mr. Guzman, our Vice-Chair, for
bringing this matter forward and also for having the site inspection and Committee
meeting on Lanai to allow our people to provide comment to the Committee so that
we can make the best decision possible.
While this is part of, I believe an 2000 ordinance stating some of the requirements of
the conditions. I can tell you that this concept is as I best can recall, 30 years old.
So, it takes time for things to happen on Lanai but if it's a good thing, I, this shows
that it will eventually get done.
But I will speak about timing, Chairman. While I support this very much, I would ask
the Council that in future matters, we put clocks on our conditions. I don't think we
should be waiting this type of length of time to get conditions complied with. I know
Mr. Couch in his Planning Committee has taken up conditions of zoning, I believe,
and the other week about whether or not decisions we make that grant land use
entitlements, whether or not the developer, landowner, is honest in its statements.
And whether or not their integrity and credibility to perform, you know, should be
tested by the County and by this Council to perform, in a timely manner, Chairman.
You know, in the old code, I wish it was still there, if you didn't perform within
five years, Council could initiate action to revert zoning back to the lower level. You
know, it, you know, you got to, you know, for me, I find it interesting that our former
County fathers and mothers had such great foresight and fortitude to place strong
language in our code. I hope we don't change the code for the matter of
convenience to reach a goal and screw the process. For, cause I for one will not
change my stand on how I view the integrity of the process that should be protected
and enhanced and not relaxed.
But I will ask for the Members to support this request at this time, Chairman, because
I do completely on behalf of our community. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
Further discussion to the motion on the floor? Seeing none, all those in favor of the
motion on the floor to approve Land Use Committee Report 13-60, signify by saying
"aye".
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AYES:COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH, CRIVELLO,
GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO, WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR
CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:
EXCUSED:

NONE.
CHAIR BAISA.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight "ayes", one "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: For the record, BILLS 44 (2013) and 45 (2013), respectively.
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
13-61 - POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE:
Recommending the following:
1.

That Resolution 13-62 , entitled "APPOINTMENT OF A MEMBER TO THE
MAUI COUNTY COMMISSION ON PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES", be
ADOPTED; and
That Resolution 13-63 , entitled "APPOINTMENT OF A MEMBER TO THE
COMMISSION ON CULTURE AND THE ARTS", be ADOPTED.

Approving the appointment of Andrew Valentine (replacing Yolanda Mau) to the Maui
County Commission on Persons with Disabilities, for a term expiring on
March 31, 2016.
Approving the appointment of Kelly McHugh (replacing Audrey Rocha Reed) to the
Commission on Culture and the Arts, for a term expiring on March 31, 2014.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, with no objections from you and the Members, I
would request the Clerk to also bring up communicat, Committee Report, excuse me,
13-62.
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MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Clerk.
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
13-62 - POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE:
Recommending that Resolution
13-64 , entitled "APPROVING THE HAWAII
STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES ("HSAC") OFFICERS, HSAC NOMINEES
TO THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AND
HSAC NOMINEES TO THE WESTERN INTERSTATE REGION BOARD OF
DIRECTORS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014", be ADOPTED.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
I MOVE THAT COMMITTEE REPORTS 13-61 AND 62 WITH
ITS RECOMMENDATIONS, BE ADOPTED.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
SECOND, MR. CHAIR.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Hokama, seconded by Mr. Couch.
Discussion, Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No further discussion.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion from the floor? Hearing none, all in favor
of the motion, signify by saying "aye".
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO,
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:

NONE.

EXCUSED:

CHAIR BAISA.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight, zero, one "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, relative to Committee Report 13-61, the resolutions
adopted are RESOLUTIONS 13-62 and 13-63, respectively.
Relative to Committee Report 13-62, the resolution adopted is RESOLUTION 13-64.
Mr. Chairman, proceeding with county communications.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: One, one moment, Clerk.
We only have county communications left but we are aware that some people have
personal things that they need to do at times. Do you want to take a ten-minute
break or do you want to just continue? Anybody wish to have a break? Okay, we
have only county communications and we're finished.
Proceed, Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, proceeding with county communications.

COUNTY COMMUNICATIONS
NO.

13-157

- STEPHEN WEST, CHAIR, SALARY COMMISSION,
(dated May 1, 2013)

Informing that the Salary Commission approved salary increases for County Council
Members and the Council Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Without objections, I'd like the Clerk to call up Communication 13-158, as well.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any objections?
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Clerk.
NO.

13-158

- STEPHEN WEST, CHAIR, SALARY COMMISSION,
(dated May 1, 2013)

Informing that the Salary Commission approved a salary increase for the County
Auditor.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATIONS 13-157 AND
13-158.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved and seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. No further discussion.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: No further discussion. All those in favor of the motion, please
signify by saying "aye".
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO,
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:
EXCUSED:

NONE.
CHAIR BAISA.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight, zero, one "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
NO. 13-159 - DANILO F. AGSALOG, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE,
(dated May 3, 2013)
Transmitting 49 contracts/grants for March 31, 2013.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATION 13-159.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
This communication from the Director of Finance simply transmit a, transmits a
summary report listing 49 contracts that the County has entered into within the last,
within the last month.
So, there's no further discussion unless the Members have questions.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion? Hearing none, all in favor of the motion,
signify by saying "aye".
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AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO,
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:
EXCUSED:

NONE.
CHAIR BAISA.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight "ayes", no "noes", one "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
NO.

13-160

- GARY YABUTA, CHIEF OF POLICE,
(dated May 3, 2013)

Informing of the receipt of $1,608.88 in Forfeiture Funds from the Department of the
Attorney General, State of Hawaii.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATION 13-160.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: There's no action necessary on this item. No further
discussion.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
May 28, 2013
Page 51

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I would just make a request to Chairman White
that he have a discussion with the Department of Police and have a good
understanding of what is in the special account and the type of resources available to
assist the Police Department in their required endeavors within the parameters of the
forfeiture program. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And the Chair would be happy to do that.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. White.
All those in favor of the motion, signify by saying "aye.
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO,
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:
EXCUSED:

NONE.
CHAIR BAISA.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight "ayes, no "noes", one "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
NO.

13-161

- DANILO F. AGSALOG, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE,
(dated May 15, 2013)

In accordance with Section 17 of Ordinance No. 3651, reporting on transfers from the
General Fund and Department of Water Supply Revenue Fund to the Bond Fund as
of April 30, 2013.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATION 13-161.

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
May 28, 2013
Page 52

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No discussion. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion, please
signify by saying "aye".
AYES:

COCHRAN,
COUCH,
COUNCILMEMBERS
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO,
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:
EXCUSED:

NONE.
CHAIR BAISA.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight "ayes", no "noes", one "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
NO. 13-162 - DAVID TAYLOR, DIRECTOR OF WATER SUPPLY,
(dated May 3, 2013)
Transmitting copies of the Department of Water Supply's Monthly Source Report and
Groundwater Use Report for the month ended April 2013.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
CHAIR, I MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATION
13.162 [SIC].
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:
SECOND, THE MOTION, CHAIR.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Victorino, seconded by Mr. White.
Discussion, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No discussion.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any other further discussion? Hearing none, all those in favor of
the motion, signify by saying "aye".
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO,
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:
EXCUSED:

NONE.
CHAIR BAISA.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight "ayes", no "noes", one "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
NO.

13-163

- ELLE COCHRAN, COUNCILMEMBER,
(dated May 21, 2013)

Relating to Council Member's reports on the light-emitting diode ("LED")
street-lighting demonstration held on May 15, 2013.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair Carroll.
Councilmembers Riki Hokama, Don Couch, and I attended a demonstration on lightemitting diodes, or LED's street-lighting features at the intersection of Wili Pa Loop,

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
May 28, 2013
Page 54

Imi Kala Street, and Eha Street in the Wailuku Millyard, Wailuku, Maui, on
May 15, 2013.
I am making this report pursuant to the State Sunshine Law, specifically
Section 92-2.5 (E) of the Hawaii Revised Statutes as amended in 2012 by Act 177.
We were, as we all know, in my Infrastructure Management Committee, I've been
trying to pass out the use of LED lights for street lamps in particular and this
demonstration that evening was to educate us into, you know, the different varieties,
the different color spectrums that are available, the different technologies of dimming,
and, and so on.
Different companies were there in attendance so it was and, and it also gave us the
intention of the Administration of where they were headed towards light efficiency and
energy efficiency.
So, it, it was educational and I just would like to see this move forward, head out of
my Committee and into reality of us utilizing this type of technology.
So at this, at this demonstration, a quorum of the Council was not present at the
meeting. The County of Maui LED street-lighting briefing for public officials was not
specifically and exclusively organized for or directed toward Members of the Council,
but was a demonstration meeting of the County of. Maui Energy Office. Public
officials including roadway engineers, public safety officials, energy officials, and
community design officials, were invited to attend. No commitment to relating to a
vote on any Council business was made or sought at this meeting.
So, Vice-Chair Carroll, that concludes my report.
AND IF THERE IS NO OTHER DISCUSSION ON THE ITEM, I
MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATION 13-163.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved and seconded; been moved by Ms. Cochran,
seconded by Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Discussion, Ms. Cochran.
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And, I thank Ms. Cochran for giving that report
since I had to leave early. As a matter of fact, I left before the, the meeting officially
started. So, I, I had the unfortunate circumstance to have taken a picture and posted
it on Facebook with Member Hokama and, and Member Cochran in it. So, that's why
she had to give that report. And that, it's kind of my, this is my little rant on the kind
of the craziness of portions of the Sunshine Law in that I left the meeting before it
started and she still had to do that.
So, just to let you know, I appreciate the report because now I know what happened
at the meeting that I was supposedly at. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion? All those in favor of the motion, please signal
by, signify by saying "aye".
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO,
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:
EXCUSED:

NONE.
CHAIR BAISA.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight "ayes", no "noes", one "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
NO. 13-164 - JEFFREY UEOKA, DEPUTY CORPORATION COUNSEL,
(dated May 20, 2013)
Transmitting a proposed resolution entitled "AUTHORIZING A GRANT OF A LEASE
OF COUNTY OFFICE SPACE TO THE STATE OF HAWAII, OFFICE OF THE
LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR".
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. I would ask, I think we need to do a
couple of motions, Chairman, on this matter.
SO, FIRST, I MAKE A MOTION TO WAIVE THE RULE OF THE
COUNCIL THAT, I BELIEVE IS IT 7, 7A, I MAY BE
INCORRECT, THAT WOULD REQUIRE REFERRAL TO
COMMITTEE FOR CONSIDERATION OF THIS
COMMUNICATION 13-164.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved and seconded by Mr. Couch.
Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No discussion, Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: All those in favor of the motion, please signify by saying "aye".
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO,
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:
EXCUSED:

NONE.
CHAIR BAISA.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight "ayes", no "noes", one "excused".
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
CHAIRMAN, I MOVE THAT THE RESOLUTION ATTACHED
TO COUNTY COMMUNICATION 13-164, BE ADOPTED; THE
COMMUNICATION 13-164, BE FILED, AND THAT'S IT.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Hokama, seconded by Mr. Couch.
Discussion, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Chairman, we do have a
proposed resolution that was sent from the Department of our Corporation Counsel,
which was interesting enough for me, from Mr. Ueoka on behalf of Mr. Wong
requesting that the Council consider approving a grant of space so that our
Lieutenant Governor, Mr. Tsutsui of Maui, can be able to perform some of his official
duties in a government facility.
One, I would ask the Members to support this. I think the efforts of the Lieutenant
Governor in bringing government back to the neighbor islands and take away this
Oahu-centric mentality is a very healthy thing. I think the Lieutenant Governor is on
the right track where I know he travels a lot to the counties of Kauai and Big Island as
well.
And I would ask the Members that while the lease is nominal, it is fitting for us to be
able to have one of the top officials of the State be able to conduct some business in
a government facility. And I take great pride that he, he's considering the County
space before the State space.
So, I would ask the Members to please support it. As you know, I believe the
Lieutenant Governor would be able to then provide greater function and, and benefit
for our County as well as to get our message back to Oahu via the Lieutenant
Governor to express our concerns and our needs of support at the State Capitol.
Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Hearing none,
all in favor, signify by saying "aye".
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO,
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:

NONE.
CHAIR BAISA.

EXCUSED:

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight "ayes", no "noes", one "excused".
Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: For the record, RESOLUTION 13-65.

FILING OF
COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 13-165
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, relative to County Communication 13-165, from
Councilmember Victorino, it was moved forward on the agenda a little earlier. It
would be appropriate at this time to file this communication.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
I MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATION 13.165.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Victorino, seconded by Mr. White.
Discussion, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No discussion.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: All those in favor of the motion, signify by saying "aye".
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO,
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:
EXCUSED:

NONE.
CHAIR BAISA.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight "ayes", no "noes", one "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, proceeding with communications for referral. The
following county communications are recommended for referral to the following
committees as noted:
NO.

13-166

- SANANDA K. BAZ, BUDGET DIRECTOR,
(dated April 30, 2013)

Transmitting the Budget Implementation Report for Fiscal Year 2013, Third Quarter
ending March 31, 2013.
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 13-166 be referred to the
Budget and Finance Committee.
NO.

13-167

- ALAN M. ARAKAWA, MAYOR,
(dated May 3, 2013)

Transmitting the summary of cost items and a proposed resolution entitled
"APPROVING COST ITEMS FOR BARGAINING UNIT 1, NON-SUPERVISORY,
BLUE COLLAR EMPLOYEES".
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 13-167 be referred to the
Budget and Finance Committee.
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NO.

13-168 - ALAN M. ARAKAWA, MAYOR,
(dated May 10, 2013)
Transmitting the summary of cost items and a proposed resolution entitled
"APPROVING COST ITEMS FOR UNIT 2, SUPERVISORY BLUE COLLAR
EMPLOYEES, UNIT 3, NON-SUPERVISORY WHITE COLLAR EMPLOYEES, AND
UNIT 4, SUPERVISORY WHITE COLLAR EMPLOYEES".

The recommended action is that County Communication No. 13-168 be referred to the
Budget and Finance Committee.
NO.

13-169

- ALAN M. ARAKAWA, MAYOR,
(dated May 10, 2013)

Transmitting the summary of cost items and a proposed resolution entitled
"APPROVING COST ITEMS FOR NON-SUPERVISORY WHITE COLLAR
EMPLOYEES EXCLUDED FROM BARGAINING UNIT 3, AND SUPERVISORY
WHITE COLLAR EMPLOYEES EXCLUDED FROM BARGAINING UNIT 4".
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 13-169 be referred to the
Budget and Finance Committee.
NO.

13-170

- DANILO F. AGSALOG, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE,
(dated May 15, 2013)

Transmitting copies of the Finance Director's Quarterly Report for Fiscal Year July 1,
2012 to June 30, 2013 as of March 31, 2013 and the Capital Improvement Project
Report as of March 31, 2013.
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 13-170 be referred to the
Budget and Finance Committee.
NO.

13-171

- SANANDA K. BAZ, BUDGET DIRECTOR,
(dated May 17, 2013)

Transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
FISCAL YEAR 2013 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI AS IT PERTAINS TO
ESTIMATED REVENUES; DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS, SPECIAL
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MAINTENANCE PROGRAM — GENERAL FUND; TOTAL OPERATING
APPROPRIATIONS; AND TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS (OPERATING AND CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS)" along with the "CERTIFICATION OF ADDITIONAL
REVENUES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013".
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 13-171 be referred to the
Budget and Finance Committee.
(THE PROPOSED BILL ATTACHED TO COUNTY
COMMUNICATION NO. 13-171 WAS PASSED ON FIRST
READING AND ORDERED TO PRINT LATER IN THE MEETING,
AND ASSIGNED BILL NO. 46 (2013). COUNTY
COMMUNICATION NO. 13-171 WAS THEN FILED. See pages 62
through 65 for discussion.)
NO. 13-172 - GLADYS C. BAISA, COUNCIL CHAIR,
(dated May 21, 2013)
Transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO
SALARIES OF EMPLOYEES OF THE LEGISLATIVE BRANCH".
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 13-172 be referred to the
Budget and Finance Committee.
NO. 13-173 - GLADYS C. BAISA, COUNCIL CHAIR,
(dated May 1, 2013)
Transmitting a letter from Patricia Nishiyama, Na Kupuna 0 Maui, relating to
Honokao'o Beach Park "Canoe Beach".
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 13-173 be referred to the
Economic Development, Energy, Agriculture, and Recreation Committee.
NO. 13-174 - WILLIAM SPENCE, PLANNING DIRECTOR,
(dated May 16, 2013)
Relating to an application submitted by the Ing Law Firm on behalf of AOAO Wells
Street Professional Center, transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN
ORDINANCE TO CHANGE ZONING FROM R-1 RESIDENTIAL TO
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B-2 COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT FOR TAX MAP KEY
NUMBER (2) 3-4-008:038, WAILUKU, MAUI, HAWAII", and related documents.
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 13-174 be referred to the Land
Use Committee.
NO.

13-175

- MICHAEL P. VICTORINO, COUNCILMEMBER,
(dated May 20, 2013)

Transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
CHAPTER 14.07, MAUI COUNTY CODE, RELATING TO EXEMPTIONS FROM
WATER SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT FEES".
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 13-175 be referred to the
Water Resources Committee.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any objection to referring this to Committee?
Mr. White.

DISCUSSION AND ACTION RELATING TO
COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 13-171
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I would like to request that County
Communication 13-171, not be referred to Committee for the reasons as outlined in
the memo I passed out today for the Council's consideration. The memo was dated
May 28, 2013.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you.
I MOVE THAT THE REQUIREMENT OF COMMITTEE
REFERRAL AND REPORT FOR COUNTY COMMUNICATION
13-171, AS PROVIDED FOR IN RULE 7(E) OF THE RULES
OF THE COUNCIL, BE WAIVED.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. Due to the urgency of this Fiscal 2013 Budget
amendment, I'm requesting that the Council waive committee referral so this matter
can be resolved and the Department of Public Works can meet payroll requirements
through the end of this Fiscal Year.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: All those in favor of the motion, signify by saying "aye".
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO,
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: No.
NOES:
EXCUSED:

NONE.
CHAIR BAISA.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight "ayes", no "noes", one "excused".
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I MOVE THAT THE ATTACHED PROPOSED BILL BE
PASSED ON FIRST READING AND BE ORDERED TO PRINT,
AND THAT COUNTY COMMUNICATION 13-171, BE FILED.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Special Maintenance Program in the
Department of Public Works is responsible for purchasing and distributing fuel for
various County departments.
The program also includes funding for salaries and wages for approximately eleven
janitorial and maintenance employees.
According to the Budget Director, program is anticipated to run out of funds before
the year-end; therefore, expeditious action on the proposed bill is needed to meet
payroll for the janitorial employees.
Further, I, while I support this amendment, I strongly urge the Administration to look
into the cause of the shortage to ensure that our employees' payroll is not put in
jeopardy again.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion?
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I will support Mr. White's amendment this
morning, this afternoon, excuse me.
However, Chairman, I find it interesting one month left in the fiscal year, before me
can come a request certifying surplus funds. I'm wondering why this wasn't part of
the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget consideration totals. I don't expect an answer, but I can
tell you my frustration continues to grow by this type of last minute requests because
it should have been projected. I know they run their programs. But to come before
Council thirty days before the end of the Fiscal Year, let me just say it in the kindest
way possible; it's disturbing to me, Chairman.
But I will support the Chairman's, cause I don't believe the employees should be
penalized in anyway; they put in the work, we have a contract, we need to honor that.
And I will support making sure that they get funding for it as an obligation on our part
as employers.
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But I find putting the Council in this type of situation and be able to certify, all of a
sudden, more money that could have been part of the budget deliberations that could
have made an adjustment in rates and real property tax rates, again, it's disturbing to
me. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion? Seeing none, all in favor of
the motion, signify by saying "aye".
AYES:

COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, VICTORINO,
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:
EXCUSED:

NONE.
CHAIR BAISA.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; eight "ayes", no "noes", one "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
Sorry, anyone else have any other items they'd like to bring up in county
communication? If not, they will be sent to the appropriate Committees. Any
objection?
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, relative to County Communication 13-171, the bill that
passed, passing first reading is BILL 46 (2013).
Mr. Chairman, there is no further business before the Council.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Members, thank you very much for sticking out with it. Sorry, we
didn't have much of a real break today. I appreciate your attendance and those that
attended in the audience and those out in television land that are with us all the time.
Thank you very much. And this Council meeting of May 28 is now adjourned.
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ADJOURNMENT
The regular meeting of May 28, 2013 was adjourned by the Vice-Chair at 12:14 p.m.
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